MINUTES

SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT & TAXATION COMMITTEE

DATE:
TIME:
PLACE:

MEMBERS
PRESENT:

ABSENT/
EXCUSED:

NOTE:

CONVENED:

H 106

DISCUSSION:

TESTIMONY:

DISCUSSION:

TESTIMONY:

DISCUSSION:

Thursday, February 27, 2025
3:00 P.M.
Room WW53

Chairman Ricks, Vice Chairman Adams, Senators Grow, Anthon, Bernt, Den
Hartog, Toews, Rabe, and Taylor

None

The sign-in sheet, testimonies and other related materials will be retained with
the minutes in the committee's office until the end of the session and will then be
located on file with the minutes in the Legislative Services Library.

Chairman Ricks convened the meeting of the Senate Local Government and
Taxation Committee (Committee) at 3:01 p.m.

Representative Raymond presented H 106. He explained fair boards had
served as administrative boards since 1922 and continued to do so. County
commissioners appointed those boards. Idaho Code § 22-202A allowed the board
of county commissioners in a county with a population of two hundred thousand, by
ordinance, to appoint a fair board as an advisory board. Under H 106, the board
of county commissioners, in a county with a population of two hundred thousand,
could choose to have a fair board that had served as an advisory board could
continue to do so. This bill also provided a procedure by which a fair board could
petition to operate as an administrative board.

Vice Chairman Adams asked whether, under current law, when the population
of a county reached 200,000, the fair board automatically became an advisory
board, or whether the county commissioners could allow them to continue as
an administrative board. Representative Raymond responded that the county
commissioners would have to enact an ordinance.

Senator Toews asked what the relationship between the fair board and the
county commissioners would be if the current law was repealed. Representative
Raymond answered that the fair board would continue to act as an administrative
board. Senator Toews commented that it would then not be an option to be an
advisory board. Representative Raymond replied that was correct.

Bob Batista, Director of the Western Idaho Fair, testified in opposition to H 106.
He argued that an advisory board was very useful and helpful to himself and the
county commissioners.

Vice Chairman Adams asked how this legislation, if it were to become law, would
affect the Ada County Fair. Mr. Batista stated that the county commissioners would
continue to use the fair board as an advisory board.

Leslie Duncan, Kootenai County Commissioner, testified in opposition to H 106.
She argued that the decision whether the fair board should remain an advisory
board under the board of county commissioners or become an administrative board
should be up to the counties. Becoming a part of the county gave fair boards
transparency and accountability.

Senator Toews asked whether he correctly understood that H 106 took the
authority away from elected officials and placed it on unelected officials. Ms.
Duncan answered that was correct.



TESTIMONY:

DISCUSSION:

TESTIMONY:

MOTION:

DISCUSSION:

VOTE:
H 142

TESTIMONY:

MOTION:

MINUTES
APPROVAL:

ADJOURNED:

Chairman Ricks commented that since Kootenai County had not yet met the
200,000 threshold, the fair board operated independent of the county, but once
they met that threshold it would become an advisory board under the county. He
asked whether she preferred to keep the fair board as an administrative body. Ms.
Duncan responded that once that threshold was met, the county commissioners
would seek feedback from the community.

Tom Daley, Ada County Commissioner, and also representing the Idaho
Association of Counties, testified in opposition of H 106. He noted that three who
had met the threshold or were near the threshold opposed the bill. The Ada County
Commissioners attended the fair board meetings to ensure that it functioned well.
No taxpayer money supported the fair. Counties should retain the flexibility to keep
their fair boards as advisory. Fair boards should not be permitted to spend money
without the approval of the county commissioners.

Chairman Ricks asked whether it was correct that fair boards could levy taxes. Mr.
Daley responded that it was. He further stated that Ada County's Fair Board did not
levy taxes, but he understood that there were several fair boards that did.

Braden Jensen, Idaho Farm Bureau, testified in support of H 106. He expressed
a concern that, if H 106 were to pass, the fair boards would not be appointed by
elected officials. They saw value in the fair boards being appointed by elected
officials.

Vice Chairman Adams moved to hold H 106 in Committee. Senator Toews
seconded the motion.

Both Senator Toews and Vice Chairman Adams stated that they wanted to leave
the decision of whether the fair boards remained administrative boards or became
advisory boards up to the counties.

The motion carried by voice vote.

Representative Pickett presented H 142. He explained that, under current law, a
governing body that had $250,000 in expenditures was required to submit to an
annual audit. A governing body with annual expenditures between $150,000 and
$250,000 could elect to submit to either an annual audit or biannual audit. This bill
simply adjusted those thresholds to upward by $50,000 each to adjust for inflation.

Kelley Packer, Executive Director, Association of Idaho Cities, spoke in support
of H 142.

Senator Bernt moved to send H 142 to the floor with a do pass recommendation.
Senator Den Hartog seconded the motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

February 13, 2025. Senator Taylor moved to approve the Minutes of February 13,
2025. Senator Den Hartog seconded the motion. The motion passed by voice
vote.

There being no further business at this time, Chairman Ricks adjourned the
meeting of the Committee at 3:45 p.m.

SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT & TAXATION COMMITTEE
Thursday, February 27, 2025—Minutes—Page 2



Senator Ricks Meg Lawless
Chair Secretary

SENATE LOCAL GOVERNMENT & TAXATION COMMITTEE
Thursday, February 27, 2025—Minutes—Page 3



